O J o U w N

N L e e e e
O W W J o U WN PP O O

21
22
23

24
25
26
27

28
29
30
31
32

33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43

434.977.2970 &
434.293.8858 K@
www.rivanna.org &

695 Moores Creek Lane | Charlottesville, Virginia 22902-9016

RWSA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Minutes of Regular Meeting
August 22, 2023

A regular meeting of the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority (RWSA) Board of Directors was
held on Tuesday, August 22, 2023 at 2:15 p.m. at the 2" Floor Conference Room,
Administration Building, 695 Moores Creek Lane, Charlottesville, VA.

Board Members Present: Jeff Richardson, Lauren Hildebrand, Gary O’Connell, Ann Mallek,
Brian Pinkston, Sam Sanders

Board Members Absent: Mike Gaffney

Rivanna Staff Present: Bill Mawyer, Lonnie Wood, Deborah Anama, Betsy Nemeth, David
Tungate, Jacob Woodson, Jennifer Whitaker.

Attorney(s) Present: Valerie Long.

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Jeff Richardson, Secretary-Treasurer, called the meeting to order at 2:15 p.m.
2. AGENDA APPROVAL

Ms. Mallek moved that the Board adopt the agenda as presented. The motion was seconded
by Mr. O’Connell, and passed unanimously (6-0). Mr. Gaffney was absent from the vote.

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS BOARD MEETING ON JULY 25, 2023

Ms. Mallek moved that the Board approve the minutes of the July 25, 2023 meeting. The
motion was seconded by Ms. Hildebrand, and passed unanimously (6-0). Mr. Gaffney was
absent from the vote.

4. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR

Mr. Richardson stated that the position of Vice Chair had been vacant since the departure of Mr.
Rogers on July 31, 2023. He stated that a motion, a second, and a vote would be in order to elect
a new Vice Chair effective immediately for the term ending April 30, 2024. He opened the floor
to nominations.

Mr. Pinkston nominated Mr. Sanders to serve as Vice Chair. The nomination was seconded
by Ms. Mallek.

Mr. Richardson asked if there were any other nominations for Vice Chair. Seeing none, he closed
the nominations for Vice Chair and called for the vote.



44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52

53
54
55

56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88

The motion passed unanimously (6-0). Mr. Gaffney was absent from the vote.

Mr. Richardson thanked Mr. Sanders for serving in this role and congratulated him on his recent
appointment as City Manager.

Mr. Sanders thanked Mr. Richardson for the opportunity. Mr. Sanders, newly elected Vice
Chair, proceeded to facilitate the Board meeting.

5. RECOGNITION

There was no recognition.
6. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Mr. Mawyer stated that they were very pleased that the local delegate candidate Amy Laufer
requested a visit. They gave her a presentation yesterday in the conference room and then drove
to the lvy MUC and the Crozet Water Treatment Plant. He stated that she was very appreciative,
had good questions, and seemed to understand their business, so they appreciated her visit. He
stated that they invited a number of the elected officials who represented this area to visit them,
and they were thrilled that Senator Creigh Deeds had accepted the invitation and would be
present next week. He stated that he and Mr. Gaffney would host Senator Deeds and give a
similar tour.

Mr. Mawyer stated that under the Strategic Plan priority for Planning and Infrastructure, they
continued to work on the large, major piping projects. He stated they were trying to finalize the
details on the Rivanna to Ragged Mountain Reservoir Water Pipeline, particularly where they
crossed University Foundation property. He stated that they were working with the University on
the Ragged Mountain Reservoir to Observatory WTP pipeline project and the final alignment
around the Fontaine area. They had a surveyor this week staking out a new alignment because
there was a cemetery they had to accommodate. He stated that then staff, along with UVA
officials from the Office of the Architect, would walk that route next week and hoped to come to
a conclusion on where that pipe could be located.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had a very good meeting with the Service Authority and City staff
about the Central Water Line project last week to review the 60% design documents. During the
meeting, they looked at the route in detail and got comments for items to consider. He stated that
they were moving forward with that project, and they expected to request construction bids
toward the beginning of 2024, and between mid-2024 and the end of 2024, they would start
construction depending on how long it takes to get the pipe. He stated that there was an estimated
6- to 9-month delivery process to get water pipes, and if that were to hold true, it would be close
to the end of 2024 when they would be breaking asphalt on the City streets along Jefferson Park
Avenue Extended and Cherry Avenue on its way to the Free Bridge area.

Mr. Mawyer stated that drought conditions had not been a concern, but that issue was becoming
one. He stated that the state still reported that all of the metrics which indicated precipitation
levels, groundwater levels, reservoir levels, and stream flow levels were still normal, but he
noted that the Sugar Hollow and the Ragged Mountain Reservoirs had stopped overflowing, so

August 22, 2023



89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134

they felt that South Rivanna could be next to stop overflowing. He stated that when it did stop
overflowing, staff would begin a modified operational program to utilize more water from the
Ragged Mountain reservoir and less water from the South Rivanna reservoir. He stated they
established this operational and utilization strategy several years ago, which was differentiated
by the time of year.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they were currently in the May to November timeframe, and the key to
their operations was the South Rivanna Reservoir and whether it was overflowing. He stated that
water which came from the Sugar Hollow reservoir and thru the Moormans River to the South
Rivanna Reservoir, if it went over dam into the South Rivanna River, it was out of their system
and they could not use it. While the South Rivanna reservoir was overflowing, they maximized
use of that water supply. He stated that they took 8 to 10 million gallons per day (MGD) and
processed it at the South Rivanna Treatment Plant, while they held the Ragged Mountain
Reservoir and production at the Observatory Water Treatment Plant at a minimum. He stated that
during this period, they stored water in the Ragged Mountain reservoir and maximized use of the
water in the South Rivanna Reservoir before it passed over the dam.

Mr. Mawyer stated that if the South Rivanna reservoir stopped overflowing, they would change
operational procedures by using more water from the Ragged Mountain Reservoir, treating it at
the Observatory WTP, and taking less water from the South Rivanna Reservoir. He stated that
the Ragged Mountain Reservoir was their largest reservoir with about 1.4 billion gallons, and it
would take many months to deplete that water supply. They would start using more water from
Ragged Mountain reservoir and less from South Rivanna reservoir when they had no flow over
the South Rivanna dam.

Mr. O’Connell asked if they had any issues with the Observatory WTP, and where it was
construction-wise in being able to make that switch.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they could produce 4 to 5 MGD at Observatory. The plant was not
ready to produce 10 MGD maximum capacity yet, but it would be in the next six months or so as
intended. He stated that they also had to complete the Central Water Line Project through the
City before they could pump more than 5 MGD out of Observatory into the distribution system,
so that was another step to be completed before they could fully utilize that treatment capacity.

Mr. Pinkston asked if Observatory WTP was producing again.

Mr. Mawyer stated yes, it had been producing for several months at a rate of 1 to 2 MGD, but
was intended to reach full capacity of 10 MGD. He stated that they had to be able to get the
water supply from Ragged Mtn reservoir to the Observatory WTP, and the new pipeline between
those locations would provide the raw water supply needed. He stated that they had upgraded the
Observatory WTP, but would also need to complete the Central Water Line project to utilize the
full capacity of the Observatory WTP and get the water into the distribution system. There were
two significant piping projects to be completed before they could actually get 10 MGD into the
water distribution system from the Observatory WTP.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had a term called safe yield, which addressed how much water they

August 22, 2023



135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180

could get out of a reservoir each day during drought conditions. He stated that it was not as
meaningful as operational safe yield, which was how much water they could get to the faucets of
the customers each day during drought conditions. He stated that the system required water
supply, treatment, and distribution facilities, and they had to have all three at the appropriate
capacity to maximize the system. He stated that the Rivanna to Ragged Reservoir Pipeline,
which would be completed by 2030, would be the capstone project to maximize their water
supply, treatment, and distribution system.

Ms. Mallek stated that Mr. Mawyer mentioned that Sugar Hollow reservoir was not spilling, but
the continuous flow pipe was running.

Mr. Mawyer stated yes, the minimum in-stream release was being provided, as the permit
required.

Mr. O’Connell asked if, given that students were back and use was starting to jump up, along
with bad weather, there were any issues anticipated in the next three months absent rain. He
stated that the supply levels seemed pretty good.

Mr. Mawyer stated they were at 96% of capacity in the urban system storage, and there was a
trickle spilling over the South Rivanna Dam now, but if they did not get rain in a few days, they
anticipated that spilling would stop. He stated that they would still have 1.4 B gallons in Ragged
Mtn reservoir, although they had to supplement from South Rivanna reservoir and WTP because
the Observatory WTP could produce only about 4 to 5 MGD, and the community usage was
about 10 MGD. He stated that they would provide 10 MGD from the combined production of the
South Rivanna and Observatory WTPs, plus they may be able to produce about 1 MGD at the
North Rivanna WTP if there was flow in the North Rivanna river.

Mr. Mawyer stated that as inflow to the South Rivanna Reservoir declined, the North Rivanna
River that fed the North Rivanna Water Treatment Plant typically receded and would give them
very little water to treat. He stated that they were more dependent on the Ragged Mountain
reservoir and the Observatory WTP when they had a less-than-full water storage system. He
stated that the South Rivanna reservoir overflowed almost all the time. It had been six years
since it stopped overflowing.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they talked last month about the North Rivanna Water Treatment Plant
and the PFAS test that detected compounds which exceeded the proposed EPA standards of 4
parts per trillion. He stated that they had gotten one test result back from the lab in Michigan
which stated there was no PFAS in the second round of treated water testing, so they restarted
the North Rivanna Treatment Plant in July.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they got the test results back from the lab in Indiana that also confirmed
there was no detection of PFAS in the treated water. He stated that there were detections in the
raw water, but they were less than the 4 parts per trillion standard proposed by EPA.

Mr. Pinkston stated that there was a good article in the Daily Progress last week in which Ms.
Mallek and Mr. Mawyer made comments. He asked what the chart on the slide indicated.

August 22, 2023



181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226

Mr. Mawyer explained that they would continue to complete PFAS testing, and as an example,
they did an additional round of testing for the Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule
(UCMR) 5, where they took samples on August 9 and 10, 2023 and shipped them off for testing.
He stated that on their own they would be testing in September. They did quarterly UCMR 5
testing in November and February, and they did their own testing bi-annually. He stated that the
point was that they were testing for PFAS almost every month, and it was not just a one-time
event that they checked PFAS and found that detection.

Mr. Pinkston asked if they felt the EPA and the state requirements were converging. He stated
that the last time they spoke, it seemed that those agencies were trying to figure out what it was
they wanted to measure and what the rules would be. He asked if that was still the case.

Mr. Mawyer replied that it was still the case. EPA indicated they would have a maximum
contaminant level standard for six of the PFAS compounds by the end of this calendar year.

Mr. Pinkston asked if the state would be doing more testing so staff did not have to ship samples
to laboratories located outside of Virginia, or if it would be something they could do in house.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they were looking to see what testing they could do with our in-house
laboratory, but the preliminary thought was that it took a lot of resources and dollars to provide
that level of testing, which was why only a few labs in the country could do it. He stated that
they expected the lab testing technology to improve as the PFAS testing demand increased. He
stated that with the UCMR 5, the EPA issued a preliminary report yesterday and stated that there
were over 10,000 utilities in the country that were being asked to collect PFAS samples. The
initial results stated that 20% had responded, and RWSA was one of them. He stated that the
UCMRS5 testing program would continue for another year, but from the 20% of utilities that
responded, about 8% had PFAS levels that exceeded the proposed EPA standards.

Mr. Pinkston stated that what Ms. Mallek stated in the article was exactly right in that their
systems were not prepared to deal with this. He stated that maybe this was not the right time or
venue, but he was concerned about if they discovered this in the South Rivanna WTP. He stated
they still had the option of using Ragged Mountain Reservoir and the Observatory Treatment
Plant if they had to, but he had skepticism about whether the rules were clear enough yet for
them to be operationalized for a utility of this size. He stated that clearly this was a safety hazard,
and they were talking about something that was one millionth of a one millionth. He stated that it
was exquisitely tiny, which was why it was hard to test for. He stated that it was interesting to
him that in California the previous combined standard was 70 parts per trillion.

Mr. Mawyer stated that he believed that reference was correct. Several states and utilities in the
country used the unofficial standard of 70 parts per trillion for drinking water.

Mr. Pinkston stated that he was worried about false positives or the concept of reliability in
engineering or testing consistency, it was not like they were taking hundreds of samples like they
did with E. coli. He stated that these were single samples that they were taking and shipping off
to some place. He stated that he was not trying to cast doubt, but he was asking what was

August 22, 2023



227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272

credential. He stated that he knew they were going to meet with river basin people in a few
weeks. He stated that he had some concerns and felt like they had to be thoughtful as a Board
about what happened if they discovered something at South Rivanna WTP and if they just shut
off the water.

Mr. Mawyer stated that he shared that concern and that staff had been meeting to talk about these
same issues. He stated that one thing that he found out today in an article from the American Bar
Association about the proposed new PFAS regulation was that compliance would be based on
annual concentrations calculated from four quarterly monitoring samples. He stated that gave
them some breathing room, because if they had one sample that exceeded 4 ppt they would not
immediately have to shut down a plant and go into an operational emergency, but it would be
based on four quarterly samples.

Mr. Mawyer stated that process was consistent with the way that they did disinfection byproduct
analysis. He stated they completed what was called a locational running annual average that
determined if they were in compliance with the standard. He stated that they had four quarters to
take samples and one bad result did not put them in noncompliance, it was an average through
four quarters. He stated that it would be good news if that was the way the EPA regulation was
finalized. He stated that their plan right now was to continue to research the issue and to monitor
what the EPA and Virginia Department of Health were planning.

Mr. Pinkston asked if there was any work being done to canvas the watershed to see if there were
sources. He stated that in Roanoke, they were able to find the source of the PFAS.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had been looking for potential sources. Their Water Resources
Manager investigated all of the permitted properties in Albemarle County that were licensed for
a land application of biosolids as a potential source of PFAS. He stated that there had been no
land applications in Albemarle County in the last five years, so they did not think that was the
source. He stated that looking in the North Rivanna River watershed, which extends into Greene
County, there was a land application in November 2022. He stated that their Water Resources
Manager was in contact with DEQ because DEQ issued permits for farms to apply biosolids on
their property.

Mr. Mawyer stated that DEQ did report on this particular property because there was an odor
complaint, but the report stated that the application was compliant with the setback requirements
and there was no apparent runoff of biosolids into streams. He stated that they were currently
working up the watershed to see if there were any additional biosolid applications. He stated that
the article in the newspaper talked with the Charlottesville Airport about whether they were
using firefighting foam, which was a product that contained PFAS.

Mr. Mawyer stated that the fire personnel indicated they had not used a PFAS product since
2005. Also, the airport was not in the drainage watershed of the North Rivanna River, so it
would not be a source of PFAS in the North Rivanna River. He stated that Albemarle and
Greene Counties were in the watershed of the North Rivanna River. Mr. Mawyer noted that the
RWSA reservoirs prohibited swimming, and suntan lotion was known to include PFAS, so they
did not suspect that as a source. However, the North Rivanna River was not one of their

August 22, 2023



273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318

reservoirs and swimming was not prohibited in the North Rivanna River. He stated that Chris
Green Lake also flowed into the North Rivanna River and was an area that had swimming, so it
could be a potential source. He stated there were a myriad of potential sources. It could be
furniture treated with PFAS that had been dumped into a gulley and rain was washing it into a
stream.

Mr. Pinkston stated that it seemed that they were addressing his concern, which was that they
had a plan if they discovered this. He stated that it seemed the science was in flux, the rules were
in flux, and even though this was clearly an issue, he would agree with the Daily Progress article
that they needed a practical perspective.

Mr. O’Connell stated that it was important to note that in many of the national articles many
systems around the country had not done anything to address PFAS, but RWSA had Granular
Activated Carbon (GAC) in their system for a long time. He stated that it had been in our system
for a different purpose, but its whole purpose was to remove any kind of contaminant that could
get into the water supply and to keep it out of their public drinking water. He stated that was the
treatment of choice for PFAS at any level, particularly at higher levels. He stated that a lot of
utilities around the country had not been willing to spend the money because it was really
expensive to put GAC in place, but he believed they would see a lot of utilities adding a GAC
system over the next couple of years.

Mr. O’Connell stated that they were a step ahead of where most utilities were, which added a
barrier to any kind of PFAS that would be occurring. He stated that the most recent test showed
there were no detectable levels in finished water. He stated that they were looking to ramp up
GAC to a higher level in Crozet, and likely in the future they would be looking at that in other
places. He stated that they had a barrier in place already, which had not gotten into the news and
media very well. He stated that whatever the tests showed, the treatment solution was GAC,
which they already had.

Mr. Pinkston stated that it sounded like they might need more GAC for our system.
Ms. Mallek stated that the GAC material was consumed faster with greater usage.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they had a consultant completing lab testing to determine how long the
water needed to be in contact with the GAC in order to remove PFAS, which was called empty
bed contact time. He stated there was one standard to remove disinfection byproducts, which
came from chlorine disinfection, and that removal period was about 14 minutes. He stated that
the initial test results indicated that to remove PFAS they needed 21 minutes of contact time,
which would require more GAC vessels in order to treat PFAS at the same volume of water per
day. He stated they had this test going on, and would be planning their next CIP and whether
they needed to add more GAC vessels, maybe coming to the Board next spring with projects to
add more GAC to their treatment system.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they applied for an emerging contaminant grant in 2022, which was

federal BIL dollars, and they received $3.17 M through the Virginia Department of Health,
which was being applied at the Crozet WTP for additional GAC facilities. He stated that they

August 22, 2023



319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364

reapplied in the second year for a grant of $16 M and would continue to seek federal dollars to
help them add more GAC vessels and treatment to their system. He stated that they would look
for additional testing laboratories to see if they could find some closer than Michigan or Indiana.
He stated they had staff looking at what they would have to do to be capable of providing in-
house PFAS testing.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they also were going to look for temporary GAC equipment in case they
needed to have it brought in to supplement their own treatment facilities, such as at Crozet where
there was no backup water system. He stated that the Crozet, Scottsville, and Red Hill systems
were independent, so if they had a high PFAS detection at those locations there would be a
challenge. They were working to find temporary, emergency GAC equipment similar to
emergency generators or air conditioners. He stated that regarding water distribution, they could
not shut down the South Rivanna Water Treatment Plant and provide enough water to the urban
system.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they could minimize production at South Rivanna WTP and maximize at
Observatory and North Rivanna WTPs, but they would have to continue to use South Rivanna
WTP to provide fire protection and sanitary purposes. He stated that they were exploring if they
could bring in a water distribution system or bottled water as an example. He stated that they had
already researched where they could distribute bottled water within their water service areas and
what vendors they might contract with in order to be ready.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they would carefully monitor the raw and treated drinking water should
there be approval of the proposed EPA standards. He stated that staff were working on the
strategies they could think of to prepare them for any potential water testing that indicated PFAS,
and they were going to be testing almost every month. He stated they were working to be
prepared.

Ms. Mallek stated that having been digging around in this for a long time, she knew it was really
hard to keep composure, because there was danger, and when they had danger, they wanted to do
something about it. She stated that from all of the meetings she had been to with the EPA about
this, multiple federal agencies were working on this and with each other, and the USDA was
digging very deeply into this right now, and there was supposed to be some guidance coming out
in the next month about the use of sewage sludge, because it was found to be very severely and
directly affected in two different states on opposite sides of the country.

Ms. Mallek stated that all of the different utility representatives in these meetings were saying to
stop production of PFAS, and to not get after utilities if they were going to allow more and more
of this stuff to be dumped into water sources. She stated that everyone understood that, so there
was not an overreaction to say, and it was absolutely right, that they were going to deliberately
go into this and do the best that they could to be prepared. She stated that she was so joyful of
that joint meeting where they put in the Granular Activated Carbon, which was expensive but
less expensive than had they done all the other things and then had to do this, so she always
considered that to be a plus.

Ms. Mallek stated that there would be a whole federal approach about the producer paying

August 22, 2023



365
366
367
368
369
370

371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410

because utilities could not pass it along to ratepayers. She stated that people who had been
making profits off of this product for years would have to figure out a way to do this. She stated
that there were many people at many different levels who were all there to help Mr. Mawyer and
staff here, which was why they had to be connected with them.

7. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC

Mr. Sanders asked if there were any members of the public who wished to speak.
Mr. Woodson stated that there was one online commentor, Dede Smith.

Ms. Smith stated that she did not anticipate speaking but saw that they had water demand on
their agenda. She stated that listening to this conversation was absolutely fascinating because
there had been history with the raw water quality in their urban system. She stated that back in
the 1920s when the system was deemed too small, the Virginia Department of Health at that
point, more than 100 years ago, did an analysis of where the cleanest raw water was, and they
stated basically of all the sources that they still identified, the only clean raw water in the system
was the Moormans River.

Ms. Smith stated that this analysis was then done again in 2013 under the latest community water
plan, and again, the Virginia Department of Health came back and stated that they only had one
clean raw water source, which was the Moormans River. She stated that they should keep using
their cleanest raw water supply. She stated that back then, PFAS was not even an issue, but now
that it was an issue, it was a big deal. She stated that on top of that, during the community water
supply conversation, a few really fascinating things came up. She stated that one was that the
Nature Conservancy’s plan, which they implemented, minus the 9-mile uphill pipeline, was to
make Ragged Mountain big enough to supply the whole system with water in a drought with
time to refill.

Ms. Smith stated that there was no putting dirty water into Ragged Mountain, and the whole
point of Ragged Mountain was that it was the only clean, raw water they had and it had no PFAS
because it was from the very top of the watershed. She stated that the other fascinating thing that
came up during the conversations about the community water supply was that they had very
large sources, or aquifers, in western Albemarle in the mountains. She stated that no one wanted
to talk about this because the entire Albemarle presence on Rivanna water was to protect that
area, but there were very large, clean water sources in those mountains, and that was a study that
she was happy to forward to anybody.

Ms. Smith stated that it was why Nestlé, one of the most corrupt organizations in the world,
invested $1M in the Nature Conservancy’s Piedmont plan, because they were very interested in
those aquifers in the mountains. She stated that she did not think they got anyone to agree to
work with them, but that stated, she wanted them to please keep those things in mind. She stated
that PFAS would only become a bigger problem, and the only way to really combat it reasonably
was to use the cleanest water they had as their raw water source. She stated that she did not
expect them to actually do that but she appreciated their time.

8. RESPONSES TO PUBLIC COMMENTS

August 22, 2023



411
412
413
414
415

416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428

429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454

Mr. Sanders asked if Mr. Mawyer had a response to public comment.
Mr. Mawyer stated he did not.

9. CONSENT AGENDA

a.Staff Report on Finance

b.Staff Report on Operations

c.Staff Report on CIP Projects

d.Staff Report on Administration and Communications

e.Staff Report on Wholesale Metering

f. Staff Report on Drought Monitoring

g.Approval of Engineering Services — Crozet GAC Expansion Phase 1 — Short Elliott
Hendrickson, Inc.

h.Approval of Engineering Services — Observatory Water Treatment Plant — Expansion and
Rehabilitation Project — Additional Construction Phase Services — Short Elliott
Hendrickson Inc.

i. Approval of Engineering Services — Beaver Creek Raw Water Pump Station and Intake —
Hazen and Sawyer

Mr. O’Connell moved that the Board adopt the Consent Agenda. The motion was seconded
by Ms. Hildebrand.

Mr. O’Connell asked if it was correct that the financial report in the consent agenda was the
year-end report.

Mr. Mawyer stated that was correct.

Mr. O’Connell stated that there was a $1.5M deficit.

Mr. Mawyer stated that was correct.

Mr. O’Connell asked if Mr. Mawyer could talk about the plan that would deal with that.

Mr. Mawyer stated that next month they would have a year-end results presentation that would
go through the details, but they had to look at each cost center where the deficit occurred and
they went to the reserves for each of those cost centers, and that was where they funded the
deficit. He stated that more to Mr. O’Connell’s’ question was how they tried to prevent these
exceedances from happening in the future, and they were reviewing their FY24 and proposed FY
25 budgets and to find ways to mitigate the exceedances. He stated that a lot of the exceedances
were in chemicals that they bid annually to be competitive and get the lowest price, and the bids
were about 60% higher last year, so they had to absorb that cost increase in FY 23.

Mr. Mawyer stated that they also had completed a lot of unbudgeted work for their information

technology program including IT security, and they spent $500,000 on implementing those
enhancements over the last year. He stated that those were two of the larger issues that drove the

August 22, 2023



455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471

472
473

474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499

deficit. He stated that they bid out the chemicals in June 2023 and the prices were slightly lower,
so they were pleased with that, but were trying to work between having affordable rates to the
two customers and funding the necessary programs. He stated that he had discussed this issue
with staff, and that it would not be as simple as adding $2.5M to the FY 25 budget. He stated
that Mr. Wood would return next month with a presentation.

Mr. O’Connell asked if that would be regarding strategies for dealing with it as well as the
sources to cover the debt.

Mr. Mawyer stated yes.

Mr. Sanders asked if there were any other questions about the consent agenda. He called for the
vote.

The motion passed unanimously (6-0). Mr. Gaffney was absent from the vote.

10. OTHER BUSINESS
a.Presentation: Urban Water Supply and Demand Review
Jennifer Whitaker, Director of Engineering and Maintenance

Ms. Whitaker stated that she would be presenting a review of the urban drinking water supply
and demand study. She stated that much of the analysis she would be discussing had been done
between 2018 - 2020. She stated that the urban water system supply consisted of three main
reservoirs. She stated the Sugar Hollow Reservoir, located at the foothills of the Blue Ridge
Mountains near Shenandoah National Park, had approximately 339 MG of storage.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the South Fork Rivanna Reservoir was located in the central part of the
County and held 883 MG, and the Ragged Mountain Reservoir held 1.44 BG. She stated that the
current storage capacity in the three reservoirs was 2.6 BG, and all served the urban system,
including the City of Charlottesville, UVA, and the urban ring of Albemarle County. She stated
that in addition, they had a small North Fork Rivanna River intake that had a small water
treatment plant. She stated that they would talk more about the future disposition of that plant,
but it was supplied by a small river that was in the process of drying up as they spoke, and if they
did not get some rain, would likely be dry.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the urban area included the City of Charlottesville, UVA, and the urban
ring north up Route 29 and east and west along Route 250. She stated that they had three key
water treatment plants in the urban system, one being the South Fork Rivanna Water Treatment
Plant, which was rated to produce about 12 MGD, the Observatory Water Treatment Plant,
which was in the middle of being upgraded to an anticipated 10 MGD at the end of this year, and
the North Rivanna Water Treatment Plant had a rated capacity of 2 MGD and usually produced a
little under 1 MGD. She stated that the North Rivanna Water Treatment Plant was anticipated to
be decommissioned in 2026 and the demand would be shifted to the South Fork Rivanna Water
Treatment Plant. She stated that overall, they had 24 MGD of treatment capacity.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the water supply was regulated in the Commonwealth through the

August 22, 2023



500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545

Virginia Administrative Code, Chapter 780, which required local water supply planning
designed to ensure adequate and safe drinking water was available and to promote conservation.
She stated that in 2001 and 2002, there was an 18-month drought of record in central Virginia,
and prior to that the drought of record was in the 1930s. She stated that this sparked a ten-year
long water supply planning process, which looked at over 32 alternatives, and ultimately the
community selected to drink local and stay within their protected watershed.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the community water supply plan came to fruition, was adopted in
2012, and included several projects. She stated that one of the projects was the larger
replacement dam for the Ragged Mountain Reservoir, where there had been two dams built there
previously, one in 1885 and one in 1908. She stated that the new dam was completed in 2014 and
met the needs of both dam safety and water supply. She stated that the next project is a larger
raw water line from South Fork Rivanna to Ragged Mountain Reservoir.

Ms. Whitaker stated that they talked about this extensively in the last few meetings, and it was
originally scheduled to be constructed between 2027 and 2035, and now they were planning
between 2023 and 2030. She next stated that renovation of the South Rivanna and Observatory
Water Treatment Plants was under construction and nearing completion. She stated that the last
project was replacing the original 1920s pipeline that ran from Ragged Mountain to Observatory.
She stated that this is an infrastructure renewal project as well as a capacity project, and that was
planned for 2024 through 2028.

Ms. Whitaker stated that there were three key documents to talk about when discussing water
supply, and one of them was the Ragged Mountain Dam Project Agreement, which was the
master plan that allowed all of the utilities and government agencies to agree on how to proceed
with the community’s Water Supply Plan. She explained that it was a cost agreement, and they
could see the cost split for each portion of the project between the City and ACSA on the slide,
with slightly different cost splits depending on each project. She stated that it was important to
note that there were key qualifiers in that agreement, stipulating that the raising of Ragged
Mountain dam an additional 12 feet was in the design and construction of the project, but raising
the water level would not happen until the supply hit 85% of demand.

Ms. Whitaker stated that there was a proposal to come forward soon to potentially change that
limitation. She stated that the second item was that the agreement required them to complete
bathymetric studies every 10 years, which were topographic surveys under the water of the
reservoirs. These allowed staff to view sediment depths, topographic features, and how the
riverbed morphology was changing in the reservoirs.

Ms. Whitaker stated that they also had two environmental permits that allowed them to execute
this whole program, one through the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, and a second through
VDEQ. She stated that they were under administrative continuance for both permits. She stated
that they had been getting fairly good feedback on the submitted permit renewals so far and did
not expect any huge regulatory problems.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the next few slides came directly out of their 2020 study. She stated that
on the left of the slide shown, there was a chart from the completed bathymetric surveys of how

August 22, 2023



546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591

much usable water they had in the reservoirs. She stated that in the third column, it added up to
2.6 BG. She stated that historically, they did not do bathymetric surveys very often, but now that
the technology had progressed, they could get a survey crew out on the reservoir and generate
topography relatively quickly. She stated that by doing this once every 10 years, they could
create trends and understand what volume changes were going on in the reservoir.

Ms. Whitaker stated that on the right-hand side of the slide, there was a graph showing the
historical bathymetric surveys for the South Fork Rivanna Reservoir. She stated that it could be
seen that from the 1960s through 2010, they had a steady decline of usable volume in the South
Fork Rivanna Reservoir. She stated that it was originally designed for an even steeper decline
and was expected to silt in at some point.

Ms. Whitaker stated that what they were seeing in the last couple of surveys was that the siltation
seemed to have leveled off. She stated that it could have happened for a couple of reasons,
including that a natural body of water could find an equilibrium, and/or that the large 2018 storm
had created significant scour out of the reservoir, which may have contributed to less sediment.
She stated that they would be interested to see what the next bathymetric survey showed them for
volume.

Mr. O’Connell asked if it would be completed again in 2030.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the bathymetric survey would be done in 2028 and included in the 2030
supply and demand study. She stated that they were staggering implementation so the surveyors
did not have to do every reservoir all in one summer, because sometimes the weather did not
cooperate. She stated that the next item, as Mr. Mawyer alluded to earlier, was the safe yield
versus the operational safe yield. She stated that historically, when they talked about how much
water they had, they had always talked about safe yield. She stated that it was a historic
measurement that had been used in the Commonwealth for the better part of 70 years, primarily
because most water systems in the Commonwealth only had one reservoir.

Ms. Whitaker stated that when they started looking at complex systems that interacted like theirs
did, with three reservoirs, three plants, river intake, and moving water from one place to another,
it got pretty complicated to try to figure out what that yield was, and they came up with a system
to measure it that accounted for the limitations of piping, treatment plants, conveyance of nature,
rainfall, and hydrology. She stated that they had developed an operational yield for the system,
which measures what could be produced and delivered to customers.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the graph on the slide indicated that in 2020, the operational yield was
12.8 MGD, and when they improved the plants, because the plants were a key limiting factor,
they would see the operational yield go up. She stated that the Central Water Line and the other
piping projects contributed to that available water supply go up. She stated that it showed that
there was a steady decline based on sedimentation in the South Fork Reservoir, so they could see
the water supply going up and slowly going back down over time.

Ms. Whitaker stated that now that they knew what they had for supply, the other curve they
needed to look at was the population forecast in order to see what demand may be in the future.

August 22, 2023



592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637

She stated that every 10 years they did a full water supply study with a safe yield analysis,
population projection, and demand analysis. She stated that they were able to meet over the
course of about two months with the regional agencies, including Weldon Cooper Center, the
Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission, the Albemarle County Office of Community
Development, the City Neighborhood Development Services Department, and UVA Facilities
and Architect Offices, along with the utility agencies as well to gather projection information.

Ms. Whitaker stated that they looked at the long-term forecast, what future development plans
looked like, what UVA was planning, and they tried to incorporate all of that into a population
and demand forecast for the community. She stated that the chart displayed on the slide came out
of their 2020 report and was what they anticipated their designated service area to be over time.
She stated that it was not a measurement of population but was the designated service area that
included UVA, the City, and portions of the County based on comprehensive planning and other
work.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the two graphs on the slide were meant to be illustrative. She stated that
they only went to 2018 because that was where they stopped when they did the study, but what
they showed was that the per capita unit demand for their community had dropped dramatically
in the last 25 years. She stated that typically, when estimating water historically, they would see
per capita use of 110 or 120 gallons per day. She stated that their community typically operated
at 60 gallons or 65 gallons per person per day, which was among some of the lowest water usage
rates in the entire country at this point. She stated that as they talked about conservation, there
were absolutely additional opportunities, but they were at a very low usage rate compared to
much of the rest of the country.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the next graph indicated that UV A was the largest single customer in
the system, with a historically higher water demand. She stated that UVA had done a lot of work
on the system to bring their per capita, per student, per person rate down. She stated that the
number of people served at UVa was still going up, but the demand was going down. They
believed that in 2035, they would start to see a climb in the curve with more people and more
uses, so the demand would rise as well.

Ms. Whitaker stated that they had an operational yield, which was indicated on the graph with
gray bars, when plotted against demand, it showed that they had adequate water supply through
2060. She stated that their supply and demand were expected to be equal in 2060. She stated that
they typically planned improvements at the 85% level, because it takes a long time to build
improvements and obtain permits needed. The 85% point is 2045.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the plan to increase water supply included first construction of the
Ragged Mountain to Observatory Pipeline and Pump Station, which was shown in brown on the
bottom of the map on the slide. She stated that this project replaced 100-year-old pipes and
infrastructure and increased raw water capacity to the Observatory Water Treatment Plant.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the next project was the Central Water Line, which was the dark blue

line on the map. She stated that it connected all of the water plants, tanks, and the finished water
system. She stated that the purple line going north to south on the map was the South Rivanna to

August 22, 2023



638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683

Ragged Mountain Pipeline. The final project is the ultimate raise of the pool by 12 feet at the
Ragged Mountain Reservoir.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the next graph was displaying the same data of supply and demand
crossing at 2060 at 13.7 MGD. She stated that what happened to their yield and supply when
they built the South Rivanna to Ragged Mountain Pipeline gave them a large jump in 2030 to
provide more yield, availability, and capabilities to supply water and respond to droughts and
emergencies. She stated that similar to the conversations about PFAS earlier, there was a
question about how they kept the system functional and running if they had to shut a plant down.
She stated that they had to plan for experiencing a drought that was worse than the drought of
record, which was likely due to climate change. She stated that they had to ask how to do that
and what it looked like, and the graph indicated that it carried them through the planning period
past 2070.

Mr. Richardson asked where the projection of the Observatory’s capacity of 10 MGD per day
was represented in the graph.

Ms. Whitaker stated that part of that was built into the initial jump when renovation of the plants
was finished in 2023. Because they could get more into the plants than out of the plants, the
Central Water Line would be built on the same schedule as the Ragged to Observatory pipeline.
She stated that part of the increase was built into the increase to 15.1 MGD, and part of it was
built into the increase to 18 MGD.

Mr. Richardson asked if those two things combined got them to 18 MGD.

Ms. Whitaker stated yes. She stated that the last graph showed that the yield raised to 21.5 MGD,
and that value included not only the pipeline and the other projects they had talked about, but
also raising the normal pool level 12 feet at Ragged Mountain. She stated that once they had the
larger pipeline in place, they could operate that entire system as one unit. At that point, the
entire community water supply plan as it was envisioned would be completed and give them full
flexibility and redundancy throughout the system. She stated that this was what the ultimate plan
would provide.

Ms. Whitaker summarized that they had adequate supply, and the current plan took them well
past 2060, however one of the things they must be thinking about was that severe droughts were
on the horizon for most of the United States and most likely their community as well. She stated
that they had designed our water system to be prepared for the drought of record, and it was
likely that they would see conditions more severe in their lifetimes. She stated that part of
advancing these projects was being prepared and having the redundancy and resiliency in the
system to address more severe conditions and water supply requirements.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the pipeline work that they had underway now looked to be completed
by 2030, both raw and finished water, and the staff were working on those projects right now.
She stated that the existing Ragged Mountain Dam would allow them to add another 700 MG of
storage when they raised the normal pool an additional 12 feet, and would give them a 50%
increase in storage at that reservoir. She stated that there was a Ragged Mountain Dam Project

August 22, 2023



684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729

Agreement modification that may be presented to the City Council, the Service Authority, and
RWSA in the future that would allow them to implement this increase in the water storage
volume at the Ragged Mtn reservoir earlier than what was in the original agreement.

Mr. Sanders asked what the projected timing was to be on the amendment.

Mr. Mawyer replied that Ms. Long was working with the City Attorney and the ACSA Attorney
to go over the terms, and as soon as that was completed, they would request Mr. Sanders to
consider taking the request to Council. He stated that they hoped within several months they
would be ready to consider the amendment to the agreement.

Ms. Mallek asked if 339 MGD was the safe yield for Sugar Hollow.

Ms. Whitaker stated that it was the usable volume. She stated that all reservoirs had a section at
the bottom that they did not consider usable due to a variety of reasons, so the usage storage in
Sugar Hollow was 339 MGD.

Ms. Mallek stated that was the 20 MGD difference between 50 years ago and now. She asked if
that was used as their primary source, how long would it would last considering what they were
using now.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the pipe connection between the Rivanna and Ragged Mtn reservoirs
was the key. She stated that they were limited in how much they could transfer from Sugar
Hollow into Ragged Mountain to about 3 MGD. She stated that Sugar Hollow reservoir had a
steep watershed, so it did refill quickly, but it did need rain to refill, so in a drought it would
drain and they would have to use all three reservoirs to supply drinking water to the community.

Ms. Mallek stated that Sugar Hollow could not provide enough water by itself.
Ms. Whitaker stated no, it could not do it by itself.

Ms. Mallek stated that even the South Fork Rivanna Reservoir could not provide enough water
by itself. She stated that it filled very fast and fell very quickly when it stopped raining.

Mr. O’Connell asked if the one action that would need to occur was the amendment to the
Ragged Mountain agreement, and the rest of the items they talked about were in the CIP with
plans on when they were going to happen.

Mr. Mawyer stated yes. He stated that all of the infrastructure plans were in place, they just
needed agreement on the amendment to the Ragged Mountain Dam Project agreement to allow
them to fill Ragged Mountain reservoir sooner. He stated that the dam was already built to take
on the additional 12 feet and 700 MG, but they needed agreement from the Council and Boards
to fill the reservoir as soon as possible rather than waiting until the demand equaled 85% of
supply. He stated that they wanted to fill it now and have maximum water storage capacity for
the community.

August 22, 2023



730
731

732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774

b.Presentation: Wastewater Facilities Review
David Tungate, Director of Operations and Environmental Services

Mr. Tungate stated that the presentation was showing an aerial view of the Moores Creek
Advanced Water Resource Recovery Facility. He stated that there are four wastewater treatment
facilities that RWSA operates in Albemarle County. He stated that the upper left one was the
Moores Creek facility, which was the largest facility and rated at 15 MGD in treatment capacity,
on the right was the Stone Robinson Elementary School Wastewater Treatment Plant, and the
bottom right was the Glenmore Water Resource Recovery Facility, which serves the Glenmore
subdivision and the Rivanna Village area east of Charlottesville. He stated that we also manage
the Scottsville Wastewater Resource Recovery Facility that serves the Town of Scottsville.

Mr. Tungate stated that wastewater staff considers the Moores Creek facility to have two sides,
the “wet side” and the “dry side”. He stated that displayed on the slide was the wet side, closest
to 1-64, and toward the back was the Administration Building where we are currently located.
He stated that the band screens are the first equipment to process the water on the “wet” side.
The next step is a grit removal system. The water then flows through two pipes to the primary
clarifiers. The primary clarifiers were covered in a recent odor control project, is the first
wastewater treatment process. The odor control scrubbing tower is adjacent to the primary
clarifiers and treats the foul air form the primary clarifiers. The aeration basins are the next stop,
and it is the location where the majority of the biological treatment occurs. He stated that the
image showed two of the four secondary clarifiers.

Mr. Tungate stated that the solids or “dry” side of Moores Creek has three primary digesters that
break down the sludge from the “wet” side. He stated that the gas generated from breaking
down the solids in the sludge are stored in the secondary digester with a floating dome roof. The
methane was piped over to be stored in the methane gas sphere or used in the boiler for heating
the water to supply the temperature for the digesters. The digested solids are stored in the sludge
storage digester, after being in the digesters for approximately 15 days. The sludge is then
pumped to the solids handling building where a centrifuge de-waters the sludge. He stated that
at the top of the photograph were the UV channels, which were used to disinfect the water, then
they had their outfall on Moores Creek.

Mr. Tungate stated that Moores Creek has two influent pump stations. One of which, Moores
Creek pump station, was located near the entrance to the Moores Creek facility. The newer of
the two influent pump stations, Rivanna pump station was built adjacent to the new facility at
Woolen Mills. He stated that of the two pump stations, Moores Creek and Rivanna, the Rivanna
Pump Station was the largest and served everything north of the northern half of the City of
Charlottesville, including all of the urban area around the City. It was indicated in yellow on the
map shown on the slide. He stated that the Moores Creek Pump Station served the southern half
of the City as well as Crozet. He stated that there was not another wastewater treatment plant in
Crozet, but there were a series of four pump stations that pumped the sewage from Crozet to the
Farmington area, where it then traveled by gravity to the Moores Creek Water Treatment Plant.

Mr. Tungate stated that the sewage gets pumped from the two influent pump stations, Moores
Creek and Rivanna, to the band screens. Each of the influent pump stations have large grinders

August 22, 2023



775
776
777
778
779
780
781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820

that make any solids small enough to be pumped. stations to He showed a small plastic bag with
material from the band screens. This material gets hauled off from a dumpster to be disposed of
in a landfill. A typical year will see approximately 600 yards of this material each year.

Mr. Tungate stated that they also had grit removal system, which removed the heavier insoluble
material out of the sewage that came into the plant. It is an important step as this type of
insoluble material takes up valuable space in the wastewater treatment plant. . He stated that
RWSA wastewater department hauled away approximately 300 yards of insoluble grit every
year. After the band screens and grit removal system, the water then flows to the primary
clarifiers, which was the first stage of sludge and grease and oil removal. He stated that they had
been covered as part of the odor control project.

Mr. Tungate stated that the pipes seen on top of the basin were what was taking the air to the
odor scrubbing system, which he then displayed a photograph of on the slide. The next slide
showed Crozet Pump Station 4 at Route 240 and Route 250. The pump station is on the left and
the new Flow Equalization Tank is on the right. The Flow Equalization Tank temporarily stores
higher flows of sewage, and when the sewage flows drop off, the Flow Equalization Tank
empties back to Crozet Pump Station 4.

Mr. Tungate noted that RWSA has an odor control system at three of their four Crozet pump
stations. Crozet pump station odor control costs about $400,000 per year.

Ms. Mallek asked if that was an introduction of some chemical in that spot or a filter.

Mr. Tungate stated that it was a chemical; they feed a combination of Bioxide and Hydrogen
Peroxide to keep the odors down. He stated that the next photograph displayed the aeration zones
at Moores Creek aeration basins, which is where nitrogen was converted to nitrogen gas through
the biological treatment. He stated that after the aeration basins, the water went to the secondary
clarifiers for the final stage of sludge removal. Secondary clarifiers allow the sludge to settle to
the bottom and the clear water on top is decanted and taken over to the gravity sand filters and
ultimately put back in to Moores Creek. He stated that gravity sand filters removed small
particles to increase the effectiveness of the UV lamps. The sludge that accumulates in the
secondary clarifiers is pumped to the digesters.

Mr. Tungate stated that Moores Creek has a series of UV channels that disinfect the wastewater
just before it is released back to Moores Creek. He stated that after the sludge has been in the
digesters for 15-20 days, it is moved to the solids handling building. This building contains two
centrifuges that dewater the sludge by spinning it very fast. The water is returned back to the
front of the plant, and the solids were then captured as biosolids. He stated that in 2022, Moores
Creek generated approximately 14,000 tons of biosolids, and they paid to have those hauled to
Waverly, Virginia to McGill Environmental, where it was made into a commercially available
compost product. He stated that they paid for both the hauling and disposal at McGill
Environmental in Waverly Virginia.

Mr. Tungate stated that regarding nutrients, RWSA has a permit to operate the Moores Creek
Advanced Water Resource Facility and were allocated 282,994 pounds of Nitrogen and 18,525

August 22, 2023



821
822
823
824
825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841
842
843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866

pounds of Phosphorous for the year. He stated that this report is in the consent agenda for the
Board of Directors every month. He stated that the monthly allocation for Nitrogen was 25,583
pounds and for Phosphorous was 1,544. The monthly discharge for July 2023 was 10,114
pounds of Nitrogen and 713 pounds of Phosphorous.

Mr. Tungate stated that for July of 2023 , the wastewater department was at 43% of their
monthly allocation for Nitrogen and 46% of their allocation for Phosphorous, and for the year
they were at 23% and 17% respectively. He stated that this is a part of their nutrient credit
trading program, so when they overperformed and had allocated nutrients left, they could sell
them on the exchange for money. He stated that for 2022, it was about $50,000 and in years past
it had been between $80,000 to $100,000. He stated that it depended on the value of the credits
and who needed those credits.

Mr. Tungate stated that the wastewater plant performance testing was done monthly with
compliance reports sent to the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. He stated that
dissolved oxygen and pH were tested daily, total suspended solids and ammonia were tested five
times per week, Escherichia coli bacteria was tested for seven times per week, total Phosphorous
and total Nitrogen are tested twice per week, and chemical biological oxygen demand was
tested four times per week.

Mr. Tungate stated that the Moores Creek septic receiving station processed approximately 9
million gallons of septage per year and about 7,000 deliveries each year.

Mr. Pinkston asked what the source of that septage was.

Mr. Tungate stated that it came from local, decentralized wastewater systems.
Mr. Pinkston asked if they were from port-o-johns.

Mr. Tungate stated yes, but they were mostly from residential septic tanks.

Mr. Mawyer clarified that they were from rural septic tanks where people were not connected to
a public sewer system.

Ms. Mallek asked if septic customers were paying sufficiently to cover costs.

Mr. Tungate stated that they did a cost-of-service study in December 2022, and found that it was
paying for itself.

He stated that regarding the wastewater treatment plants, RWSA has four wastewater treatment
plants with 16 wastewater operators who worked in the wastewater department. He stated that
nine operators were assigned at the Moores Creek facility, which was their largest facility and
was staffed 24/7, 365 days per year. He stated that the operators worked 12-hour shifts and
changed at 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. He stated that the Glenmore Wastewater Treatment Plant was
staffed four hours a day, 365 days per year, with one operator each day, so they had two shifts of
operators each week to cover all seven days.

August 22, 2023



867
868  Mr. Tungate stated that at the Scottsville Wastewater Treatment Plant, was staffed 4 hours per
869  day, 365 days per year. He stated that the Stone Robinson Wastewater Plant treated about 7,000
g70  gallons per day when school was in session and was staffed one hour per day, 365 days per year.
871  He stated that typically one operator per day did each of these three County facilities. He stated
g72  that they had relief operators in both the water and wastewater departments who were licensed
873  Class 1 Operators who were flexible and able to run any of the wastewater treatment plants and
874  were available to work if a co-worker called in sick or was on vacation. He stated that they had
875  three management staff; a manager, assistant manager, and a supervisor, and each of these are
g76  Class 1 Operators.

877

878  Mr. Tungate stated that RWSA is proud of the accomplishments of their wastewater operation
879  staff in gaining licenses. He stated that of their 16 wastewater operators, seven of them were
ggo  Class 1, five of them were Class 2, two were Class 3, and there were two unlicensed trainees
881  right now. He stated that passing the certification exams and obtaining a license gave the

gg2  operator a 7% raise for each license. Each operator has to qualify for certification exams with a
883  combination of education and hands-on experience to be allowed to take certification exams.
884  These exams and certifications are organized by the Virginia Department of Professional and
885  Occupational Regulation. He stated that many new hires had college degrees, which allowed
gg6  them to move forward faster through the licensing and certification process.

887

888  Mr. Tungate stated that the industrial waste pretreatment program’s purpose is to protect the
889  sewer collection system and the processes in the wastewater treatment plants by having sewer
go0  discharge limits. He stated that it was a requirement by the EPA and Virginia DEQ. He stated
891 that the Virginia DEQ regulated the wastewater side of their business and the Virginia

892  Department of Health regulated the drinking water side of the business.

893

894  Mr. Tungate stated that the pretreatment program looks at fats, oils, and greases, and ACSA sent
895  outa mailer about the Fats Qils and Greases (FOG) Program in the last 12 months. He stated
896  that a pretreatment program will also look at heavy metals, nutrients, pH limits, and chemical
897  biochemical oxygen demand as well. He stated that significant industrial users was a topic that
g9s  RWSA were exploring it with both City and County staff. He stated that categorical industrial
899  use would include metal finishing and semiconductor manufacturing, which they did not have a
900 lot of in this area, and non-categorical industrial users were those who discharged more than
901 25,000 gallons per day or had the potential to adversely affect their treatment process.

902

903  Mr. Tungate stated that sewer users with processes that discharged products of concern were
904  restaurants, breweries, wineries, soft drink bottling facilities, and food preparation facilities. He
905  stated that they had three significant industrial users (SIUs) that they were monitoring in the
906  pretreatment program. He stated that these were Virginia Diodes, Inc, Mikro, and Northrop

907  Grumman, and each were required to submit a semi-annual report for the periods ending in June
908  and December of each year. He stated that they currently had a project to identify sewer users
909  with processes that discharge products of concern.

910

911  Mr. Tungate stated that Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) measured the amount of oxygen
912  consumed by aerobic bacteria in a water sample at a specific temperature over a specific period

August 22, 2023



913
914
915
916
917
918
919
920
921
922
923
924
925
926
927
928
929
930
931
932
933
934
935
936
937
938
939
940
941
942
943
944
945
946
947
948
949
950
951
952
953
954
955
956
957
958

of time. Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD) represented BOD from carbon-
based compounds only. He stated that BOD was food for bacteria, the bacteria utilized oxygen
when they consumed the BOD, and as oxygen is depleted from the water, it can cause an issue
for any aquatic organisms. He stated that the higher the BOD or CBOD in waste, the lower the
dissolved oxygen was in the stream, which could cause issues for aquatic organisms.

Mr. Tungate stated that CBOD testing was done in the lab right below them, and they did this as
part of their SIU investigation with the City and the County. He stated that the testing process
involves taking an initial dissolved oxygen reading, then removed nitrogen bacteria from the
sample so there was only CBOD present, then the sample remained at 20 degrees Celsius for five
days in an incubator. He stated that after five days, they took another dissolved oxygen reading
and took the difference between those two dissolved oxygen readings to calculate the CBOD
levels.

Mr. Tungate stated that the slide shown was a portion of the operating permit for Moores Creek.
He stated that they could see on the CBOD limit on the permit and the monthly average could
not exceed 9 mg/L and the weekly average could not exceed 14 mg/L. He stated they were
required to do one 24-hour composite CBOD test per week. RWSA wastewater department has
automatic samplers to collect the water samples every day. He stated that the Moores Creek
aeration basins had a CBOD treatment capacity of 34,900 pounds per day, and in 2022, their
average CBOD concentration was 24,000 pounds per day. He stated that the master plan stated
that if the daily average of CBOD increased to 31,700 pounds over three consecutive months,
possible expansion would be needed in the aeration basins to treat the CBOD.

Mr. Tungate stated that the wastewater department budget for FY 2024 was $21.5M. He stated
that it included $10M for debt service, $4.3M for central support including Finance, IT, HR,
Engineering, Maintenance, and Lab services, $1.7M for employee salaries, and $1M for
wastewater treatment chemicals. He stated that also included $1.1M for operations and
maintenance, $1.2M for odor control and biosolids disposal and trucking, $1.2M for
communication lines, IT, miscellaneous supplies, and professional services, and $0.98M for
utility costs including electricity and natural gas. He stated that in FY 2023, they treated 3.4
billion gallons of wastewater at the cost of $3.11 per 1,000 gallons of wastewater.

Ms. Mallek asked if the CBOD exceeding 31,700 pounds would be due to population growth or
something else.

Mr. Tungate stated that they were investigating that now. He stated that they suspected there was
contribution to the CBOD from certain industries in their area and they were investigating to
determine where that strong waste was coming from.

Mr. Mawyer asked Mr. Tungate to explain why they would be concerned about heavy metals in
the wastewater system.

Mr. Tungate stated that it would have an effect on the quality of their biosolids they sold to

McGill Environmental, and it would affect the viability of their microbes utilized in the
treatment process. Metals could kill off the microbes in the aeration basins.

August 22, 2023



259
960
961
962
963
964
965
266

967
968
969
970
971
972
973

974
975
976

9717
978
979
980
981
982
983
984

Ms. Mallek stated that the more strong waste that was there, the more those were going to get
through and impact someone’s drinking water downstream.

Mr. Tungate stated they were attuned to this and had online instruments that gave them a clue
and cued them in if there was a problem.

11. OTHER ITEMS FROM BOARD/STAFF NOT ON THE AGENDA
There were none.

Mr. Mawyer thanked Mr. Sanders for serving as Vice Chair and running the meeting, as well as
his appointment as City Manager. He stated that he looked forward to his future years of
assistance.

12. CLOSED MEETING
There was no reason for a closed meeting.

13. ADJOURNMENT

At 3:46 p.m.; Mr. Sanders adjourned the meeting of the Rivanna Water and Sewer
Authority.

Respectfully submitted,

/r/Jeff Richardson
* Secretary - Treasurer

S

August 22, 2023



	APROVED Minutes RWSA_08_22_23.pdf
	SAdmin Bizh24011013281



